Proceedings_IFA Conduit Financing Committee Meeting, 8 March 2022

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

| LLI NO' S FI NANCE AUTHORI TY
CONDUI T FI NANCI NG COW TTEE MEETI NG

REPORT OF PROCEEDI NGS of the Special Meeting of

the Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Fi nancing

Committee HELD I N PERSON and VI A AUDI O and VI DEO

CONFERENCE on Tuesday, March 8, 2022, at 8:30 a.m

PRESENT VI A AUDI O AND VI DEO CONFERENCE:

ALSO

COW TTEE CHAI R JEFFREY WRI GHT

MEMBER ARLENE JURACEK

MEMBER EDUARDO TOBON

CHAl RVAN W LL HOBERT, ex-officio, non voting

PRESENT:

BRAD FLETCHER, Vi ce President

RI CH FRAMPTON, Executive Vice President

CHRI STOPHER MEI STER, Executive Director

(in person and via audi o and vi deo conference)
SARA PERUG NI, Vice President, Healthcare/ CCRC
LORRI E KARCHER, Agri cul ture Program Coor di nat or

Mar k Meyer, Assistant Secretary
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COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: (Ckay. Good nor ni ng.
This is Jeffrey Wight, chair of the Illinois Finance
Aut hority Conduit Financing Commttee. | would like to
call the neeting to order.
ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Good norning. This

Is Mark Meyer, Assistant Secretary of the Authority.
Today's date is Tuesday, March 8, 2022, and this
special neeting of the Authority's Conduit Financing
Commttee has been called to order by Commttee Chair
Wight at the tine of 8:32 a.m

The Governor of the State of Illinois
| ssued Qubernatorial Di saster Proclamations on February
4, 2022, and March 4, 2022, finding that pursuant to
the provisions of the Illinois Enmergency Managenent
Agency Act, a disaster exists within the State of
I1linois related to public health concerns caused by
COVID-19 declaring all counties in the State of
IIlinois as a disaster area, each of which remains in
effect for 30 days fromits issuance date.

| n accordance with the provisions of
Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the OQpen Meetings Act,
as anended, the Chair of the Authority, WII| Hobert has
determ ned that an in-person neeting of the Authority

and all of its conmttees today, March 8, 2022, is not
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practical nor prudent because of the disaster declared.
Therefore, this neeting is being conducted via video
and audi o conference w thout the physical presence of a
gquorum of the Menbers. Executive Director Chris
Meister is currently in the Authority's Chicago office
at the |ocation of the neeting and al so participating
via video and audi o conference; all Menbers will attend
this nmeeting via video or audi o conference.

As we take the roll calls, the
responses of the Menbers w il be taken as an indication
that they can hear all other Menbers, discussion, and
t esti nony.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
Thank you, Mark. WII the Assistant Secretary pl ease
call the roll.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Certainly. This is
Mark Meyer. Wth all Menbers attending via video or
audi o conference, | wll call the roll: Menber
Fuent es.

(No verbal response.)

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Hearing none. Menber
Jur acek.
(No verbal response.)

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Menmber Tobon.
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MEMBER TOBON: Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Zeller.

(No verbal response.)

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Committee Chair -- or
|"msorry. Yeah, Commttee Chair Wi ght.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT:  Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  And Chair Hobert,
ex-of ficio, nonvoting.

CHAl R HOBERT: Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Again, this is Mark
Meyer. Commttee Chair Wight, in accordance with
Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Qpen Meetings Act as
amended, a quorum of the Authority's Conduit Fi nancing
Comm ttee has not been constituted, but we may conti nue
at this tine.

Bef ore we begi n maki ng our way through
today's agenda, | would |like to request that each
Menber nute their audi o when possible to elimnate any
background noi se unl ess you are meki ng or seconding a
notion, voting, or otherw se providing any comments for
the record. |If you are participating via video, please
use your nute button found on your task bar on the
bottom of your screen. You wll be able to see the

control bar by noving your nouse or touching the screen
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of your tablet.

For any Menber or anyone fromthe
public participating via phone, to nute and unnute your
| ine, you may press star six on your keypad if you do
not have that feature on your phone.

As a rem nder, we're being recorded and
a court reporter is transcribing today's proceedings.
For the consideration of the court reporter, | would
also like to ask that each nenber state their nane
bef ore maki ng or seconding a notion or otherw se
provi di ng any comments for the record.

Finally, I would like to confirmthat
all menbers of the public attending in person or via
video or audi o conference can hear this neeting
clearly. Chris, can you confirmthat the video and
audi o conference is clearly heard at the physi cal
| ocation of this neeting?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR MElI STER  Yes. Thank you,
Mark. This is Executive Director Chris Meister. | am
physically present in the conference roomon the 10th
floor, 160 North LaSalle Street in Chicago. | can
confirmthat | can hear all discussions, presentations
and votes at this norning's neeting location. |[|'ve

advi sed the security guards on the first floor that we
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1| have two neetings today, of which this is one. The

2 | agendas for both neetings have been posted both on this
3| floor and as well as on the first floor of this

41 building as well as on the Authority's website as of

5| last Thursday, March 3, 2022. Building security has

6 | been advised that any nenbers of the public who choose
71 to do so and who choose to conply with the building' s
8 | public health and safety requirenments may cone to this
9] roomand listen to this norning's proceedings. At the
10 | nmonent, there are no nenbers of the public who are

11| physically present with nme. Thank you. Back to you.
12 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER This is Mark Meyer.
13 | Thank you, Chris. |If any Menber of the public

14| participating via video or audio conference find that
15| they cannot hear these proceedings clearly, please call
16 | (312) 651-1300, or wite info@l-fa.comimedi ately to
171 let us know and we wi Il endeavor to solve the audio

18 | issue. Chair Wight, back to you.

19 COM TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
20 | Thank you, Mark. [If anyone fromthe public

21 | participating via video wi shes to make a conmment,

22 | please indicate your desire to do so by using the

23| "Raise Hand" function. dick on the "Rai se Hand"

24 | option |located at the center of your control bar at the
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bottom of the screen. You will be able to see the task
bar by novi ng your nouse or touching the screen of your
tabl et .

| f anyone fromthe public participating
via phone wi shes to make a coment, please indicate
your desire to do so by using the "Raise Hand" function
by pressing star nine.

| s there any public comment for the
comm ttee?

(No verbal response.)

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Hearing none, | would
li ke to ask for the general consent of the Menbers to
consi der New Business Itens 1, 2, 3, 4A, 4B, 5 and 6
collectively and to have the subsequent recorded vote
applied to each respective, individual New Business
Item unless there are any specific New Business |tens
that a Menber would like to consider separately.

(No verbal response.)

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Hearing no need of a
recusal. | would like to consider New Business Itens
1, 2, 3, 4A, 4B, 5 and 6 under the consent agenda and
take a roll call vote.

M5. PERUG NI : Thank you, Commttee Chair Wight.

Good norning. This is Sara Perugini, and |Item Nunber 1
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I n your packet, which starts on page 4 of the Conduit
PDF, is a final resolution for a not-to-exceed anount
of $1.1 billion for NorthShore University Heal t hSystem
who is the Borrower. The proceeds of the bonds wll be
I ssued in one or nore fixed and/or variable rate

t ax- exenpt and/or taxable series to be used, together
wth certain other noneys to (1) finance, refinance or
rei mburse the Borrower or the Users listed in the
report for the cost of acquiring, constructing,
renovating, renodeling, expanding, rehabilitating and
equi pping certain health facilities owned by the
Borrower or any User.

Specifically, it is contenpl ated that
bond proceeds will be used for (1) an expansi on of the
nunber of surgical operating roons and recovery room at
Skoki e Hospital with an estimated conpletion date in
2022, and (2) expansion of the cardiovascul ar surgical
space at d enbrook Hospital with an esti nated
conpl etion date of Decenber 2024.

Bond proceeds wll also be used to (2)
refund, refinance, or defease all or a portion of one
or nore series of outstanding Authority Bonds listed in
the report (collectively, the "Prior Bonds");

(3) fund one or nore debt service

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 8
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reserve funds, fund working capital and/or fund
I nterest if deened necessary or desirable by the
Borrower or the Authority;

(4) pay certain paynents owed by the
Borrower in connection with the termnation of certain
I nterest rate swap agreenents related to the Prior
Bonds;

and (5) pay certain expenses incurred
I n connection with the issuance of the bonds and
refundi ng of the Prior Bonds, including the cost of any
credit or liquidity enhancenent.

This is the first tinme this has been
presented to the Menbers, and it's a one-tine final
resolution. Under "job data" you wll see the
I nformati on about the full-tinme enpl oyees as well as
project-related constructi on and permanent jobs.

Under "borrower description” you wll
see that as a result of a nerger between the Borrower
and Edwar d- El mhurst Heal thcare, effective January 1,
2022, NS-EE Hol di ngs becane the sole nenber of the
Borrower and Edwar d- El mhurst Heal thcare to create a
health care delivery system hereinafter referred to as
the System providing a full range of health care

services with nine hospitals and nore than 300
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outpatient facilities serving patient popul ations
within the Gty of Chicago and throughout the northern,
sout hwestern and western suburbs of the netropolitan
Chi cago area. The System coll ectively operates nine
acute care hospitals, including an acute care
psychiatric hospital with an aggregate anount of
approxi mately 2300 |icensed beds. The Systemis
organi zed into two regions, the north and south region,
and the report contains the specifics about the
hospitals in each region.

The Borrower currently is the obligated
group agent and the sole obligated group nenber under a
master trust indenture between the Borrower and the
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Conpany, NA as naster
trustee. Here and after the NorthShore Master
| ndenture. Concurrently with the issuance of the bonds
NS- EE Hol di ngs and Edwar d- El mhurst Heal t hcare w | |
becone obligated group nenbers under the NorthShore
Master |Indenture. The current master trust indenture
relating to the Edward-El mhurst Healthcare obligated
group wll be term nated and any obligations thereunder
securing outstandi ng bonds or interest rate swap
agreenents wll be canceled. Paynents under the | oan

agreenents wll be secured by obligations issued under

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 10
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t he NorthShore Master | ndenture.

Under "Structure/Credit Indicators” on
page 5 of the PDF, the plan of finance currently
contenpl ates the issuance of bonds in one or nore fixed
rate and/or variable rate tax-exenpt series that wll
(1) be sold in a public offering underwitten by
&ol dman Sachs and Co. and/or JP Morgan Securities, LLC,
or an affiliate thereof and/or (2) directly purchased
by TD Bank and/or PNC Bank or another bank chosen by
t he Borrower.

Now as of today, the nore detailed plan
of finance | ooks as follows: Approximately 450 mllion
fi xed-rate bonds sold in a public offering underwitten
by Gol dman Sachs and/ or JP Morgan, approximtely 230
mllion of variable-rate demand bonds sold in a public
of fering underwitten by Gol dman Sachs and/or JP
Morgan, with approximately 90 mlIlion of those backed
by a standby bond purchase agreenent from JP Morgan
Chase Bank, approximately 160 mllion fixed-rate bonds
directly purchased by TD Bank, National Association or
ot her banks sel ected by the Borrower, and approxi mately
220 mllion variable-rate bonds directly purchased by
PNC Bank or other banks sel ected by the Borrower.

Wth respect to ratings, current
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| ong-term underlying credit ratings for the Borrower
are 'Aa3'" with a stable outlook by Mody's as of
February 15, 2022, and 'AA-' stable outl ook by S&P
G obal Ratings as of February 15, 2022. The publicly
of fered bonds are al so expected to be rated by Mody's
and S&P. The directly purchased bonds will not be rated
and will be sold in m ni num denom nati ons of 100, 000.

Rel ated to credit enhancenent. As
previously nentioned, one or nore series of the
publicly offered variable-rate bonds will be backed by
a standby bond purchase agreenent provided by JP Mrgan
Chase Bank, carrying a long-termrating of 'AA-"' or
better. The bonds will mature no |ater than 35 years
after the date of issuance.

Turning to the top of page 6 of the
PDF, you wll see the estimted sources and uses
breakdown. Skipping to page 8 of the PDF, you will see
interest rate information, the final bond resol ution
established interest rate paraneters of not-to-exceed
(1) 7 percent on the fixed-rate bonds and (2) 4 percent
as an initial rate for the variable-rate bonds. This
transaction is estimated to close in April 2022.

On pages 10 through 11 of the PDF, you

will find the Board Menbers and professional and

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 12



Proceedings_IFA Conduit Financing Committee Meeting, 8 March 2022

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

financial team and on page 12 you will see a service
area map which details the north and south regions. On
the top of the page 13 of the PDF, you will find the
confidential information section starting wth the
Authority's fee for this transaction. Followng is an
expl anation of how the financials will be presented in
the offering docunents, which are estimated to print in
m d- March. The Authority's signature on the bond

I ndentures wll constitute receipt of the financial

i nformation once it is avail able.

The recent nature of the affiliation
and different fiscal year ends of the |egacy NorthShore
System and | egacy EE System makes the financi al
presentation conplicated and | engthy. The esti mated

net present value savings fromthe potential refunding

of the Prior Bonds is approximately 7 mllion -- 70
mllion, excuse ne.
At this tinme, I wll take any coments

or questions that any Menber may have.
(No verbal response.)
M5. PERUG NI: Hearing none. NMving on to Item
Nunmber 2 in your packet, which starts on page 14 of the
Conduit PDF, is a final resolution for not-to-exceed

amount of 65 mllion, for Washi ngton and Jane Smth
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1| Community, Oland Park, d/b/a Smth Crossing, who is

2| the Borrower. The proceeds of the bonds will be used
3] to (1) refund all or a portion of one or nore series of
4| outstanding Authority bond listed in the report

5| (collectively, the "Prior Bonds"); (2) termnate three
6| existing swaps held with two banks on the prior bond;
71 (3) establish a debt service reserve fund, if deened

8 | necessary or desirable by the Authority and/or the

9| Borrower; and (4) pay certain fees and expenses

10| incurred in connection with the refunding of the Prior
11| Bonds and the issuance of the bond. This is the first
12| time this transaction has been presented to the

13 | Menbers, and it's a one-tine final resolution.

14 Under "job data" you wll see

15| information about the full-tinme enpl oyees of the

16 | Borrower.

17 Under "borrower description" the

18 | Borrower operates Smth Crossing, a continuing care

19 | retirenment comunity located in Oland Park, a suburb
20 | approxinmately 15 mles southwest of Chicago. Smth

21 | Crossing consists of 173 independent living units, 46
22 | traditional assisted living units, 16 nenory care units
23| and 92 skilled nursing beds.

24 Under "Structure/Credit |ndicators”" on

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 14



Proceedings_IFA Conduit Financing Committee Meeting, 8 March 2022

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

page 14 of the PDF, the plan of finance contenpl ates
t he i ssuance of bonds in one or nore fixed-rate
t ax-exenpt series that will be sold in a public
of fering underwitten by Ziegler Investnent Bank and
sold in m ni mum denom nati ons of 5000. The bonds have
been assigned a rating of 'BBB-', Stable Qutl ook, by
Fitch Ratings as of February 23, 2022. Wth respect to
security, the bonds are expected to be secured by an
obligation of the Borrower issued under the nmaster
trust indenture. Such obligation will include a gross
revenue pl edge and a nortgage on Smth Crossing. The
bonds wi Il mature no later than October 15, 2045.

And at the bottom of the page you'l
see the estinmated sources and uses. |If you skip to
page 17 of the PDF, you will see interest rate
I nformation. The final bond resol ution establishes an
I nterest rate of not-to-exceed 5.25 percent on the
bond. However, as of February 2022, the bonds will be
I ssued as fixed-rate bonds at an estimated coupon rate
of 4 percent and a current estinated average yield to
call of 3.33 percent. This transaction is estimated to
cl ose May -- March 24, 2022.

On page 18 of the PDF, you will see the

Board Menbers and professional and financial team On
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page 19, you wll find the service area map. And on
the top of page 20 of the PDF, you wll find the
confidential information section starting wth the
Authority's fee. Followng are the audited financi al
statenents for the Borrower for fiscal years ended June
30, 2019, 2020, and 2021 prepared by
CdiftonLarsonAllen, LLP, and unaudited financi al
statenents for the Borrower for the six nonths ended
Decenber 31, 2020, and 2021. The Borrower is strong
financially, and the expansion to Smth Crossing, which
was financed with prior Authority bonds, is helping to
bol ster the borrower's financial position.

The Borrower has a debt service
coverage above three tines and over 400 days cash on
hand. The refunding of the Prior Bonds is not for
savings. The purpose of the refunding is to elimnate
the interest rate risk and bank renewal risk associ ated
with the current bank debt. And it will lock in
relatively lowinterest -- long-termfixed interest
rates wwth a public bond offering, which wll help
| nprove the financial viability of the Borrower.

Does any Menber have any comments or
guesti ons?

(No verbal response.)
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M5. PERUG NI : Thank you. Rich.
MR. FRAMPTON: This is R ch Franpton. Thank you,

Sara. The next project is Item 3 for Erikson
| nstitute, which begins on PDF page 23 of the Conduit
Fi nanci ng Packet. Item 3 is a 501(c)(3) revenue bond
request. Staff requests approval of a one-tine final
bond resolution for The Erikson Institute, (hereinafter
"Erikson" or the "Corporation”) in an anount
not -t o- exceed $25, 700, 000.

Bond proceeds will be used by Erikson
Institute to prospectively (1) refund and redeem all or
a portion of the outstanding IlIlinois Finance Authority
Revenue Refundi ng Bonds, Series 2017A and Series 2017B,
(hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Series
2017 Bonds"), (2) pay a portion of the interest on the
Series 2022 Refunding Bond, if deened necessary or
advi sabl e by the Corporation, (3) fund a debt service
reserve fund, if deened necessary or desirable by the
Corporation, and (4) pay certain costs relating to the
| ssuance of the Series 2022 Refundi ng Bonds, if deened
necessary or desirable by the Corporation.

Eri kson was founded in 1966 to provide
graduat e and conti nui ng professional education

programm ng for early chil dhood education and child
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care professionals. Al this began with inception of
the Head Start Programin the m d-sixties.

The original project to be refunded
with a Series 2022 Refundi ng Bonds was financed with 35
mllion of |FA Series 2007 bonds, which provided for
the construction, build-out and equi pping of four
fl oors space at 541 North LaSalle Street in Chicago.
That facility continues as the hone of Erikson's
cl assroom space and their admnistrative offices.

The Series 2022 Refundi ng Bonds will be
purchased directly by Northern Trust in a private
pl acenent that wll maintain the existing Novenber 1,
2042, final maturity date featured on the Series 2017
Bonds. The proposed Series 2022 Refundi ng Bond issue
I s being undertaken to one, generate annual debt
servi ce savings, while two, enabling conversion of the
bank's underlying interest rate to a SOFR based i ndex
froma LIBOR based index rate.

Eri kson is not a rated entity under the
bank direct purchase structure. No bond rating wll be
necessary or required by the Northern Trust.

Key information in the report is
presented on PDF page 23, which reports the sources and

uses of funds table. PDF page 26, reports Erikson's
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28- menber governing board as well as their life
trustees. Wile page 27 of the report features
Eri kson's professional and financial team

Moving on to the financials, which
begi n on PDF page 28. Savings generated by the
proposed refunding wll inprove debt service coverage
fromapproximately 1.8 tines in 2021 to over 1.9 tines
followng closing of this refunding issue. Again, this
I npact is directly attributable to the antici pated
savings fromthe issuance of the Series 2022 Refundi ng
Bonds. The expected annual savings are identified at
the top of PDF page 29.

Most inportantly, as true with all |FA
di rect purchase bond issues, the Northern Trust as the
| ender and bond purchaser for the Series 2022 Bond w ||
be assum ng 100 percent of the default risk as the bond
pur chaser and hol der.

Does any Menber have any questions or
coment s?

(No verbal response.)

MR. FRAMPTON. Hearing none, next | will turn

t hi ngs over to Lorrie Karcher, who wll be presenting
two Begi nning Farner Bond fi nanci ngs.

M5. KARCHER: Thank you, Rich. This is Lorrie
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1| Karcher presenting Agenda |Item 4A, a Begi nni ng Far ner
2| Bond request. Staff requests approval for a one-tine
3| bond resolution for Austin Timermann in a

4| not-to-exceed anmount of 558,000. M. Tinmrermann is

5| purchasing approximately 117 acres of farm and | ocated
6| in dinton County. GCermantown Trust & Savings Bank is
7| the purchasing bank for this conduit transaction.

8 Agenda Item 4B, continuing, is also a
9 | Beginning Farnmer Bond request. Staff requests approval
10| for a one-tine Final Bond Resolution for Tyger

11| dodfelter in a not-to-exceed amount of 100, 000.

12| M. Codfelter is purchasing approximtely 38 acres of
13| farm and in Wabash County. Citizens National Bank of
14| Al bion is the purchasing bank for the conduit

15| transacti on.

16 Does anyone have any questions or

17| comments fromthe Menbers?

18 (No verbal response.)
19 M5. KARCHER: Thank you. Sar a.
20 M5. PERUG NI: Thanks, Lorrie. This is Sara

21| Perugini again. And Item Nunber 5 in your packet,
22 | which starts on page 34 of the PDF, is a neno and
23| resolution for Plynmouth Place, Inc., the Borrower,

24 | which details anendnents it would like to nake with
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respect to its Series 2021B Bonds, and acconpanyi ng
docunent. Hercules Capital Inc. (hereinafter, the
"Purchaser"} purchased and currently holds all of the
Series 2021B Bonds.

The Series 2021B Bonds currently bear
I nterest at taxable rates because the underlying series
2015 bonds they refunded are not callable until My 15,
2025, and therefore the underlying bonds were not
eligible for tax-exenpt refunding when the Series 2021B
Bonds were issued in July 2021. The Series 2021B Bonds
are convertible to tax exenpt interest rates on or
after February 15, 2025, (hereinafter, referred to as
t he "Tax- Exenpt Conversion Date"). The Series 2021B
Bonds currently bear interest at taxable interest rate
based on SOFR, published by The Federal Reserve Bank.
The terns of the bond indenture currently provide that
after the Tax- Exenpt Conversion Date, upon satisfaction
of certain conditions, the Series 2021B Bonds w || bear
I nterest at rates based on the SIFMA | ndex plus an
applicable spread. |In order to take advantage of
current market conditions, the Borrower and the
Pur chaser have agreed to anend the bond indenture to
provide that after the Tax-Exenpt Conversion Date, the

Series 2021B Bonds wll bear interest at rates equal to
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a percentage of SOFR plus an applicable spread each to
be determ ned upon the execution of certain rel ated
docunents. The proposed Authority resol ution approved
suppl enents to the bond i ndenture and the execution by
the Authority of any additional docunents necessary in
order to inplenent the anendnent and to evi dence the
approval of the anmendnents. The supplenent to the bond
I ndenture is authorized by the existing terns of the
bond i ndenture. The Purchaser will approve the
anmendnents by executing the anmendnent instrunents.
Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected to provide an
opi nion that the anmendnents wll not adversely affect
the validity of the Series 2021B Bonds. The
Aut hority's estimated fee and the borrower's financials
are al so included.

Does any Menber have any comments or
guesti ons?

(No verbal response.)

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
Thank you, everyone.
M5. PERUGNI: Onh. Excuse ne Commttee Chair

Wi ght.

Two things, one, it |ooks |Iike Menber

Juracek just joined the neeting. So welcone, Menber
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Jur acek.

And now | will continue with Item
Nunber 6 in your packet, which starts on page 40 of the
PDF, which is a neno and resol ution for Rehabilitation
Institute of Chicago d/b/a Shirley Ryan AbilitylLab, the
Borrower, which details anmendnents it would like to
make with respect to its Series 2016C and Series 2016D
Bonds and acconpanyi ng docunent.

Al the Series 2016 Bonds currently
bear interest at an index floating rate based on LIBOR
PNC Bank, National Association purchased and agreed to
hol d the Series 2016C Bonds until the end of the
current index floating rate period for the Series 2016C
Bonds, which is May 2, 2024. Banc of Anerica, Public
Capital Corp. (hereinafter, the "Purchaser") purchased
and agreed to hold the Series 2016D Bonds until the end
of the current index floating rate period for the
Series 2016D Bonds, which is Novenber 30, 2026.

In order to take advantage of current
mar ket conditions, the Borrower and the Purchaser have
agreed to convert the interest rate on the Series 2016
C and D Bonds to an index floating rate based on BSBY
for the new index floating rate period. The Borrower

expects that (1) the Purchaser wll purchase and hol d
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1| the Series 2016C Bonds for the new index floating rate
2| period, and (2) the Purchaser will continue to hold the
3| Series 2016D Bonds for the new index rate floating

4| period. In connection with the conversion, the

5| Borrower and Purchaser wish to anend and add certain

6| definitions in the bond indentures to, anong ot her

7| things, provide for BSBY and nake ot her anendnents

8 | necessary to reflect the new index floating rate

9 | period.

10 The proposed Authority resol ution

11| approves supplenents to the bond i ndentures and

12 | execution by the Authority of any additional docunents
13 | necessary in order to inplenent the anmendnents and to
14 | evidence the approval of the anendnents.

15 The suppl enents to the bond i ndentures
16 | are authorized by the existing terns of the bond

17| indentures. The Purchaser and the Borrower w ||

18 | approve the anendnents by executing the anendnent

19| instrunent. As a result of the anendnent, one or nore
20 | series of the Series 2016 Bonds may be deened rei ssued
21 | for tax purposes. Chapnan and Cutler LLP is expected
22 | to provide an opinion that the anmendnents w Il not

23 | adversely affect the tax exenpt status of any of the

24 | Series 2016 Bonds.
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1 The Authority's estimated fee and the

2| Borrower's financials are also included.

3 At this tinme, I'll take any coments or
4| questions the Menbers nmay have.

S ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER This is the Assistant
6| Secretary, Mark Meyer, as Sara indicated earlier,

71 Menber Juracek joined at 8:57 and will be added to the

8| initial quorumroll call. And we now have a quorum

9 M5. PERUG NI: Thank you, Mark. Commttee Chair
10| Wight, I've concluded ny presentation.

11 COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Thank you, Sara. This

12| is Jeffrey Wight. Thank you, everyone. | would |ike

13| to request a notion to recommend for approval the

14| follow ng New Business Itens: Itenms 1, 2, 3, 4A 4B, 5
15| and 6. |Is there such a notion?

16 MEMBER TOBON: This is Eduardo Tobon. So noved.
17 MEMBER JURACEK: And this is Arlene Juracek.

18 | Second.

19 COMW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: W/ | the Assistant

20 | Secretary please call the roll?

21 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  This is Mark Meyer.
22| On the notion by Menber Tobon and second by Menber

23| Juracek, | will call the roll.

24 Menber Juracek.
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MEMBER JURACEK: Aye.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Tobon.

MEMBER TOBON:  Yes.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER And Commttee Chair
Wi ght.

COW TTEE CHAI R WRI GHT:  Yes.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Again, this is Mark
Meyer, Committee Chair Wight. The ayes have it. And
the notion carries.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Commttee Chair
Wight. Thank you, Mark. Does anyone wi sh to nake any
additions, edits, or corrections of mnutes from
February 8, 20227

(No verbal response.)

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Hearing none, | would
li ke to request a notion to approve the mnutes. |Is
there such a notion?

MEMBER JURACEK: This is Arlene Juracek. So
noved.

MEMBER TOBON: This is Eduardo Tobon. Second.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
WIIl the Assistant Secretary please call the roll?

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER This is Mark Meyer.
On the notion by Menber Juracek and second by Menber
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Tobon, | will call the roll.
Menmber Juracek.

MEMBER JURACEK: Aye.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Tobon.

MEMBER TOBON:  Yes.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER And Commttee Chair
Wi ght ?

COW TTEE CHAI R WRI GHT:  Yes.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Again, this is Mark
Meyer. Commttee Chair Wight, The ayes have it and
the notion carries.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
Thank you, Mark. |Is there any other business to cone
before the commttee?

(No verbal response.)

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Hearing none, | would
li ke to request a notion to adjourn. Additionally,
when responding to the roll call for this notion, |
woul d ask each Menber to confirmthat they were able to
hear the participants, discussion, and testinony of
this proceeding. |Is there's such a notion?

MEMBER TOBON: This is Eduardo Tobon. So noved.

MEMBER JURACEK: This is Arlene Juracek. Second.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
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WIIl the Assistant Secretary please call the roll?

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER This is Mark Meyer.
On the notion by Menber Tobon and second by Menber
Juracek, | wll call the roll.

Menber Juracek.

MEMBER JURACEK: Aye, and | confirmthat since
joining, | could hear all participants, discussions,
and testinony. | apol ogize for ny | ateness, but we
can't clone another grandma, so | had grandchil dren
duti es this norning.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Tobon.

MEMBER TOBON: Aye, and | confirmthat | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testinony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER Comm ttee Chair
Wi ght.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Aye, and | confirmthat

| could hear all participants, discussion, and
t esti nony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER And Commttee -- or
Chair Hobert, ex officio, non voting.

CHAIR HOBERT: | confirmthat | could hear al
partici pants, discussion, and testinony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Again this is Mrk

Meyer. Commttee Chair Wight, the ayes have it. The
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1| notion carries. The time is 9:04 a.m, and the

2| commttee neeting is adjourned.
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1| STATE OF ILLINO S )

) SS.
2 | COUNTY OF DUPACE )
3
4 M chael Duffy, being first duly sworn, on oath

5| says that he is a Certified Electronic Reporter doing

6| business in the Gty of Weaton, County of DuPage and

7| State of Illinois.
8 That he reported the proceedi ngs had at the
9| foregoing Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Fi nancing

10 | Committee neeting.

11 And that the foregoing is a true and correct

12| transcript of the reported proceedi ngs so taken

13 | aforesaid and contains all the proceedings had at said
14 | neeti ng.

15
16 MMW@(
17 M chael J. Duffy

18 Certified Electronic Reporter

19 Not ary Public

20
21
22
23

24
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 01                ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

 02            CONDUIT FINANCING COMMITTEE MEETING

 03  

 04        REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS of the Special Meeting of

 05  the Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Financing

 06  Committee HELD IN PERSON and VIA AUDIO and VIDEO

 07  CONFERENCE on Tuesday, March 8, 2022, at 8:30 a.m.

 08  

 09  PRESENT VIA AUDIO AND VIDEO CONFERENCE:

 10       COMMITTEE CHAIR JEFFREY WRIGHT

 11       MEMBER ARLENE JURACEK

 12       MEMBER EDUARDO TOBON

 13       CHAIRMAN WILL HOBERT, ex-officio, non voting

 14  

 15  ALSO PRESENT:

 16       BRAD FLETCHER, Vice President

 17       RICH FRAMPTON, Executive Vice President

 18       CHRISTOPHER MEISTER, Executive Director

 19       (in person and via audio and video conference)

 20       SARA PERUGINI, Vice President, Healthcare/CCRC

 21       LORRIE KARCHER, Agriculture Program Coordinator

 22       Mark Meyer, Assistant Secretary

 23  

 24  
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 01        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Okay.  Good morning.

 02  This is Jeffrey Wright, chair of the Illinois Finance

 03  Authority Conduit Financing Committee.  I would like to

 04  call the meeting to order.

 05        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Good morning.  This

 06  is Mark Meyer, Assistant Secretary of the Authority.

 07  Today's date is Tuesday, March 8, 2022, and this

 08  special meeting of the Authority's Conduit Financing

 09  Committee has been called to order by Committee Chair

 10  Wright at the time of 8:32 a.m.

 11                  The Governor of the State of Illinois

 12  issued Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamations on February

 13  4, 2022, and March 4, 2022, finding that pursuant to

 14  the provisions of the Illinois Emergency Management

 15  Agency Act, a disaster exists within the State of

 16  Illinois related to public health concerns caused by

 17  COVID-19 declaring all counties in the State of

 18  Illinois as a disaster area, each of which remains in

 19  effect for 30 days from its issuance date.

 20                  In accordance with the provisions of

 21  Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Open Meetings Act,

 22  as amended, the Chair of the Authority, Will Hobert has

 23  determined that an in-person meeting of the Authority

 24  and all of its committees today, March 8, 2022, is not
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 01  practical nor prudent because of the disaster declared.

 02  Therefore, this meeting is being conducted via video

 03  and audio conference without the physical presence of a

 04  quorum of the Members.  Executive Director Chris

 05  Meister is currently in the Authority's Chicago office

 06  at the location of the meeting and also participating

 07  via video and audio conference; all Members will attend

 08  this meeting via video or audio conference.

 09                  As we take the roll calls, the

 10  responses of the Members will be taken as an indication

 11  that they can hear all other Members, discussion, and

 12  testimony.

 13        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 14  Thank you, Mark.  Will the Assistant Secretary please

 15  call the roll.

 16        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Certainly.  This is

 17  Mark Meyer.  With all Members attending via video or

 18  audio conference, I will call the roll:  Member

 19  Fuentes.

 20                  (No verbal response.)

 21        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Hearing none.  Member

 22  Juracek.

 23                  (No verbal response.)

 24        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Tobon.
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 01        MEMBER TOBON:  Here.

 02        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Zeller.

 03                  (No verbal response.)

 04        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Committee Chair -- or

 05  I'm sorry.  Yeah, Committee Chair Wright.

 06        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Here.

 07        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  And Chair Hobert,

 08  ex-officio, nonvoting.

 09        CHAIR HOBERT:  Here.

 10        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Again, this is Mark

 11  Meyer.  Committee Chair Wright, in accordance with

 12  Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Open Meetings Act as

 13  amended, a quorum of the Authority's Conduit Financing

 14  Committee has not been constituted, but we may continue

 15  at this time.

 16                  Before we begin making our way through

 17  today's agenda, I would like to request that each

 18  Member mute their audio when possible to eliminate any

 19  background noise unless you are making or seconding a

 20  motion, voting, or otherwise providing any comments for

 21  the record.  If you are participating via video, please

 22  use your mute button found on your task bar on the

 23  bottom of your screen.  You will be able to see the

 24  control bar by moving your mouse or touching the screen
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 01  of your tablet.

 02                  For any Member or anyone from the

 03  public participating via phone, to mute and unmute your

 04  line, you may press star six on your keypad if you do

 05  not have that feature on your phone.

 06                  As a reminder, we're being recorded and

 07  a court reporter is transcribing today's proceedings.

 08  For the consideration of the court reporter, I would

 09  also like to ask that each member state their name

 10  before making or seconding a motion or otherwise

 11  providing any comments for the record.

 12                  Finally, I would like to confirm that

 13  all members of the public attending in person or via

 14  video or audio conference can hear this meeting

 15  clearly.  Chris, can you confirm that the video and

 16  audio conference is clearly heard at the physical

 17  location of this meeting?

 18        EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MEISTER:  Yes.  Thank you,

 19  Mark.  This is Executive Director Chris Meister.  I am

 20  physically present in the conference room on the 10th

 21  floor, 160 North LaSalle Street in Chicago.  I can

 22  confirm that I can hear all discussions, presentations

 23  and votes at this morning's meeting location.  I've

 24  advised the security guards on the first floor that we
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 01  have two meetings today, of which this is one.  The

 02  agendas for both meetings have been posted both on this

 03  floor and as well as on the first floor of this

 04  building as well as on the Authority's website as of

 05  last Thursday, March 3, 2022.  Building security has

 06  been advised that any members of the public who choose

 07  to do so and who choose to comply with the building's

 08  public health and safety requirements may come to this

 09  room and listen to this morning's proceedings.  At the

 10  moment, there are no members of the public who are

 11  physically present with me.  Thank you.  Back to you.

 12        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer.

 13  Thank you, Chris.  If any Member of the public

 14  participating via video or audio conference find that

 15  they cannot hear these proceedings clearly, please call

 16  (312) 651-1300, or write info@il-fa.com immediately to

 17  let us know and we will endeavor to solve the audio

 18  issue.  Chair Wright, back to you.

 19        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 20  Thank you, Mark.  If anyone from the public

 21  participating via video wishes to make a comment,

 22  please indicate your desire to do so by using the

 23  "Raise Hand" function.  Click on the "Raise Hand"

 24  option located at the center of your control bar at the
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 01  bottom of the screen.  You will be able to see the task

 02  bar by moving your mouse or touching the screen of your

 03  tablet.

 04                  If anyone from the public participating

 05  via phone wishes to make a comment, please indicate

 06  your desire to do so by using the "Raise Hand" function

 07  by pressing star nine.

 08                  Is there any public comment for the

 09  committee?

 10                  (No verbal response.)

 11        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Hearing none, I would

 12  like to ask for the general consent of the Members to

 13  consider New Business Items 1, 2, 3, 4A, 4B, 5 and 6

 14  collectively and to have the subsequent recorded vote

 15  applied to each respective, individual New Business

 16  Item, unless there are any specific New Business Items

 17  that a Member would like to consider separately.

 18                  (No verbal response.)

 19        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Hearing no need of a

 20  recusal.  I would like to consider New Business Items

 21  1, 2, 3, 4A, 4B, 5 and 6 under the consent agenda and

 22  take a roll call vote.

 23        MS. PERUGINI:  Thank you, Committee Chair Wright.

 24  Good morning.  This is Sara Perugini, and Item Number 1
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 01  in your packet, which starts on page 4 of the Conduit

 02  PDF, is a final resolution for a not-to-exceed amount

 03  of $1.1 billion for NorthShore University HealthSystem,

 04  who is the Borrower.  The proceeds of the bonds will be

 05  issued in one or more fixed and/or variable rate

 06  tax-exempt and/or taxable series to be used, together

 07  with certain other moneys to (1) finance, refinance or

 08  reimburse the Borrower or the Users listed in the

 09  report for the cost of acquiring, constructing,

 10  renovating, remodeling, expanding, rehabilitating and

 11  equipping certain health facilities owned by the

 12  Borrower or any User.

 13                  Specifically, it is contemplated that

 14  bond proceeds will be used for (1) an expansion of the

 15  number of surgical operating rooms and recovery room at

 16  Skokie Hospital with an estimated completion date in

 17  2022, and (2) expansion of the cardiovascular surgical

 18  space at Glenbrook Hospital with an estimated

 19  completion date of December 2024.

 20                  Bond proceeds will also be used to (2)

 21  refund, refinance, or defease all or a portion of one

 22  or more series of outstanding Authority Bonds listed in

 23  the report (collectively, the "Prior Bonds");

 24                  (3) fund one or more debt service
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 01  reserve funds, fund working capital and/or fund

 02  interest if deemed necessary or desirable by the

 03  Borrower or the Authority;

 04                  (4) pay certain payments owed by the

 05  Borrower in connection with the termination of certain

 06  interest rate swap agreements related to the Prior

 07  Bonds;

 08                  and (5) pay certain expenses incurred

 09  in connection with the issuance of the bonds and

 10  refunding of the Prior Bonds, including the cost of any

 11  credit or liquidity enhancement.

 12                  This is the first time this has been

 13  presented to the Members, and it's a one-time final

 14  resolution.  Under "job data" you will see the

 15  information about the full-time employees as well as

 16  project-related construction and permanent jobs.

 17                  Under "borrower description" you will

 18  see that as a result of a merger between the Borrower

 19  and Edward-Elmhurst Healthcare, effective January 1,

 20  2022, NS-EE Holdings became the sole member of the

 21  Borrower and Edward-Elmhurst Healthcare to create a

 22  health care delivery system, hereinafter referred to as

 23  the System, providing a full range of health care

 24  services with nine hospitals and more than 300
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 01  outpatient facilities serving patient populations

 02  within the City of Chicago and throughout the northern,

 03  southwestern and western suburbs of the metropolitan

 04  Chicago area.  The System collectively operates nine

 05  acute care hospitals, including an acute care

 06  psychiatric hospital with an aggregate amount of

 07  approximately 2300 licensed beds.  The System is

 08  organized into two regions, the north and south region,

 09  and the report contains the specifics about the

 10  hospitals in each region.

 11                  The Borrower currently is the obligated

 12  group agent and the sole obligated group member under a

 13  master trust indenture between the Borrower and the

 14  Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, NA as master

 15  trustee.  Here and after the NorthShore Master

 16  Indenture.  Concurrently with the issuance of the bonds

 17  NS-EE Holdings and Edward-Elmhurst Healthcare will

 18  become obligated group members under the NorthShore

 19  Master Indenture.  The current master trust indenture

 20  relating to the Edward-Elmhurst Healthcare obligated

 21  group will be terminated and any obligations thereunder

 22  securing outstanding bonds or interest rate swap

 23  agreements will be canceled.  Payments under the loan

 24  agreements will be secured by obligations issued under
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 01  the NorthShore Master Indenture.

 02                  Under "Structure/Credit Indicators" on

 03  page 5 of the PDF, the plan of finance currently

 04  contemplates the issuance of bonds in one or more fixed

 05  rate and/or variable rate tax-exempt series that will

 06  (1) be sold in a public offering underwritten by

 07  Goldman Sachs and Co. and/or JP Morgan Securities, LLC,

 08  or an affiliate thereof and/or (2) directly purchased

 09  by TD Bank and/or PNC Bank or another bank chosen by

 10  the Borrower.

 11                  Now as of today, the more detailed plan

 12  of finance looks as follows:  Approximately 450 million

 13  fixed-rate bonds sold in a public offering underwritten

 14  by Goldman Sachs and/or JP Morgan, approximately 230

 15  million of variable-rate demand bonds sold in a public

 16  offering underwritten by Goldman Sachs and/or JP

 17  Morgan, with approximately 90 million of those backed

 18  by a standby bond purchase agreement from JP Morgan

 19  Chase Bank, approximately 160 million fixed-rate bonds

 20  directly purchased by TD Bank, National Association or

 21  other banks selected by the Borrower, and approximately

 22  220 million variable-rate bonds directly purchased by

 23  PNC Bank or other banks selected by the Borrower.

 24                  With respect to ratings, current
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 01  long-term underlying credit ratings for the Borrower

 02  are 'Aa3' with a stable outlook by Moody's as of

 03  February 15, 2022, and 'AA-' stable outlook by S&P

 04  Global Ratings as of February 15, 2022.  The publicly

 05  offered bonds are also expected to be rated by Moody's

 06  and S&P. The directly purchased bonds will not be rated

 07  and will be sold in minimum denominations of 100,000.

 08                  Related to credit enhancement.  As

 09  previously mentioned, one or more series of the

 10  publicly offered variable-rate bonds will be backed by

 11  a standby bond purchase agreement provided by JP Morgan

 12  Chase Bank, carrying a long-term rating of 'AA-' or

 13  better.  The bonds will mature no later than 35 years

 14  after the date of issuance.

 15                  Turning to the top of page 6 of the

 16  PDF, you will see the estimated sources and uses

 17  breakdown.  Skipping to page 8 of the PDF, you will see

 18  interest rate information, the final bond resolution

 19  established interest rate parameters of not-to-exceed

 20  (1) 7 percent on the fixed-rate bonds and (2) 4 percent

 21  as an initial rate for the variable-rate bonds.  This

 22  transaction is estimated to close in April 2022.

 23                  On pages 10 through 11 of the PDF, you

 24  will find the Board Members and professional and
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 01  financial team, and on page 12 you will see a service

 02  area map which details the north and south regions.  On

 03  the top of the page 13 of the PDF, you will find the

 04  confidential information section starting with the

 05  Authority's fee for this transaction.  Following is an

 06  explanation of how the financials will be presented in

 07  the offering documents, which are estimated to print in

 08  mid-March.  The Authority's signature on the bond

 09  indentures will constitute receipt of the financial

 10  information once it is available.

 11                  The recent nature of the affiliation

 12  and different fiscal year ends of the legacy NorthShore

 13  System and legacy EE System makes the financial

 14  presentation complicated and lengthy.  The estimated

 15  net present value savings from the potential refunding

 16  of the Prior Bonds is approximately 7 million -- 70

 17  million, excuse me.

 18                  At this time, I will take any comments

 19  or questions that any Member may have.

 20                  (No verbal response.)

 21        MS. PERUGINI:  Hearing none.  Moving on to Item

 22  Number 2 in your packet, which starts on page 14 of the

 23  Conduit PDF, is a final resolution for not-to-exceed

 24  amount of 65 million, for Washington and Jane Smith
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 01  Community, Orland Park, d/b/a Smith Crossing, who is

 02  the Borrower.  The proceeds of the bonds will be used

 03  to (1) refund all or a portion of one or more series of

 04  outstanding Authority bond listed in the report

 05  (collectively, the "Prior Bonds"); (2) terminate three

 06  existing swaps held with two banks on the prior bond;

 07  (3) establish a debt service reserve fund, if deemed

 08  necessary or desirable by the Authority and/or the

 09  Borrower; and (4) pay certain fees and expenses

 10  incurred in connection with the refunding of the Prior

 11  Bonds and the issuance of the bond.  This is the first

 12  time this transaction has been presented to the

 13  Members, and it's a one-time final resolution.

 14                  Under "job data" you will see

 15  information about the full-time employees of the

 16  Borrower.

 17                  Under "borrower description" the

 18  Borrower operates Smith Crossing, a continuing care

 19  retirement community located in Orland Park, a suburb

 20  approximately 15 miles southwest of Chicago.  Smith

 21  Crossing consists of 173 independent living units, 46

 22  traditional assisted living units, 16 memory care units

 23  and 92 skilled nursing beds.

 24                  Under "Structure/Credit Indicators" on

�0015

 01  page 14 of the PDF, the plan of finance contemplates

 02  the issuance of bonds in one or more fixed-rate

 03  tax-exempt series that will be sold in a public

 04  offering underwritten by Ziegler Investment Bank and

 05  sold in minimum denominations of 5000.  The bonds have

 06  been assigned a rating of 'BBB-', Stable Outlook, by

 07  Fitch Ratings as of February 23, 2022.  With respect to

 08  security, the bonds are expected to be secured by an

 09  obligation of the Borrower issued under the master

 10  trust indenture.  Such obligation will include a gross

 11  revenue pledge and a mortgage on Smith Crossing.  The

 12  bonds will mature no later than October 15, 2045.

 13                  And at the bottom of the page you'll

 14  see the estimated sources and uses.  If you skip to

 15  page 17 of the PDF, you will see interest rate

 16  information.  The final bond resolution establishes an

 17  interest rate of not-to-exceed 5.25 percent on the

 18  bond.  However, as of February 2022, the bonds will be

 19  issued as fixed-rate bonds at an estimated coupon rate

 20  of 4 percent and a current estimated average yield to

 21  call of 3.33 percent.  This transaction is estimated to

 22  close May -- March 24, 2022.

 23                  On page 18 of the PDF, you will see the

 24  Board Members and professional and financial team.  On
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 01  page 19, you will find the service area map.  And on

 02  the top of page 20 of the PDF, you will find the

 03  confidential information section starting with the

 04  Authority's fee.  Following are the audited financial

 05  statements for the Borrower for fiscal years ended June

 06  30, 2019, 2020, and 2021 prepared by

 07  CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, and unaudited financial

 08  statements for the Borrower for the six months ended

 09  December 31, 2020, and 2021.  The Borrower is strong

 10  financially, and the expansion to Smith Crossing, which

 11  was financed with prior Authority bonds, is helping to

 12  bolster the borrower's financial position.

 13                  The Borrower has a debt service

 14  coverage above three times and over 400 days cash on

 15  hand.  The refunding of the Prior Bonds is not for

 16  savings.  The purpose of the refunding is to eliminate

 17  the interest rate risk and bank renewal risk associated

 18  with the current bank debt.  And it will lock in

 19  relatively low interest -- long-term fixed interest

 20  rates with a public bond offering, which will help

 21  improve the financial viability of the Borrower.

 22                  Does any Member have any comments or

 23  questions?

 24                  (No verbal response.)
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 01        MS. PERUGINI:  Thank you.  Rich.

 02        MR. FRAMPTON:  This is Rich Frampton.  Thank you,

 03  Sara.  The next project is Item 3 for Erikson

 04  Institute, which begins on PDF page 23 of the Conduit

 05  Financing Packet.  Item 3 is a 501(c)(3) revenue bond

 06  request.  Staff requests approval of a one-time final

 07  bond resolution for The Erikson Institute, (hereinafter

 08  "Erikson" or the "Corporation") in an amount

 09  not-to-exceed $25,700,000.

 10                  Bond proceeds will be used by Erikson

 11  Institute to prospectively (1) refund and redeem all or

 12  a portion of the outstanding Illinois Finance Authority

 13  Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A and Series 2017B,

 14  (hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Series

 15  2017 Bonds"), (2) pay a portion of the interest on the

 16  Series 2022 Refunding Bond, if deemed necessary or

 17  advisable by the Corporation, (3) fund a debt service

 18  reserve fund, if deemed necessary or desirable by the

 19  Corporation, and (4) pay certain costs relating to the

 20  issuance of the Series 2022 Refunding Bonds, if deemed

 21  necessary or desirable by the Corporation.

 22                  Erikson was founded in 1966 to provide

 23  graduate and continuing professional education

 24  programming for early childhood education and child
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 01  care professionals.  All this began with inception of

 02  the Head Start Program in the mid-sixties.

 03                  The original project to be refunded

 04  with a Series 2022 Refunding Bonds was financed with 35

 05  million of IFA Series 2007 bonds, which provided for

 06  the construction, build-out and equipping of four

 07  floors space at 541 North LaSalle Street in Chicago.

 08  That facility continues as the home of Erikson's

 09  classroom space and their administrative offices.

 10                  The Series 2022 Refunding Bonds will be

 11  purchased directly by Northern Trust in a private

 12  placement that will maintain the existing November 1,

 13  2042, final maturity date featured on the Series 2017

 14  Bonds.  The proposed Series 2022 Refunding Bond issue

 15  is being undertaken to one, generate annual debt

 16  service savings, while two, enabling conversion of the

 17  bank's underlying interest rate to a SOFR based index

 18  from a LIBOR based index rate.

 19                  Erikson is not a rated entity under the

 20  bank direct purchase structure.  No bond rating will be

 21  necessary or required by the Northern Trust.

 22                  Key information in the report is

 23  presented on PDF page 23, which reports the sources and

 24  uses of funds table.  PDF page 26, reports Erikson's

�0019

 01  28-member governing board as well as their life

 02  trustees.  While page 27 of the report features

 03  Erikson's professional and financial team.

 04                  Moving on to the financials, which

 05  begin on PDF page 28.  Savings generated by the

 06  proposed refunding will improve debt service coverage

 07  from approximately 1.8 times in 2021 to over 1.9 times

 08  following closing of this refunding issue.  Again, this

 09  impact is directly attributable to the anticipated

 10  savings from the issuance of the Series 2022 Refunding

 11  Bonds.  The expected annual savings are identified at

 12  the top of PDF page 29.

 13                  Most importantly, as true with all IFA

 14  direct purchase bond issues, the Northern Trust as the

 15  lender and bond purchaser for the Series 2022 Bond will

 16  be assuming 100 percent of the default risk as the bond

 17  purchaser and holder.

 18                  Does any Member have any questions or

 19  comments?

 20                  (No verbal response.)

 21        MR. FRAMPTON:  Hearing none, next I will turn

 22  things over to Lorrie Karcher, who will be presenting

 23  two Beginning Farmer Bond financings.

 24        MS. KARCHER:  Thank you, Rich.  This is Lorrie
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 01  Karcher presenting Agenda Item 4A, a Beginning Farmer

 02  Bond request.  Staff requests approval for a one-time

 03  bond resolution for Austin Timmermann in a

 04  not-to-exceed amount of 558,000.  Mr. Timmermann is

 05  purchasing approximately 117 acres of farmland located

 06  in Clinton County.  Germantown Trust & Savings Bank is

 07  the purchasing bank for this conduit transaction.

 08                  Agenda Item 4B, continuing, is also a

 09  Beginning Farmer Bond request.  Staff requests approval

 10  for a one-time Final Bond Resolution for Tyger

 11  Clodfelter in a not-to-exceed amount of 100,000.

 12  Mr. Clodfelter is purchasing approximately 38 acres of

 13  farmland in Wabash County.  Citizens National Bank of

 14  Albion is the purchasing bank for the conduit

 15  transaction.

 16                  Does anyone have any questions or

 17  comments from the Members?

 18                  (No verbal response.)

 19        MS. KARCHER:  Thank you.  Sara.

 20        MS. PERUGINI:  Thanks, Lorrie.  This is Sara

 21  Perugini again.  And Item Number 5 in your packet,

 22  which starts on page 34 of the PDF, is a memo and

 23  resolution for Plymouth Place, Inc., the Borrower,

 24  which details amendments it would like to make with
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 01  respect to its Series 2021B Bonds, and accompanying

 02  document.  Hercules Capital Inc. (hereinafter, the

 03  "Purchaser"} purchased and currently holds all of the

 04  Series 2021B Bonds.

 05                  The Series 2021B Bonds currently bear

 06  interest at taxable rates because the underlying series

 07  2015 bonds they refunded are not callable until May 15,

 08  2025, and therefore the underlying bonds were not

 09  eligible for tax-exempt refunding when the Series 2021B

 10  Bonds were issued in July 2021.  The Series 2021B Bonds

 11  are convertible to tax exempt interest rates on or

 12  after February 15, 2025, (hereinafter, referred to as

 13  the "Tax-Exempt Conversion Date").  The Series 2021B

 14  Bonds currently bear interest at taxable interest rate

 15  based on SOFR, published by The Federal Reserve Bank.

 16  The terms of the bond indenture currently provide that

 17  after the Tax-Exempt Conversion Date, upon satisfaction

 18  of certain conditions, the Series 2021B Bonds will bear

 19  interest at rates based on the SIFMA Index plus an

 20  applicable spread.  In order to take advantage of

 21  current market conditions, the Borrower and the

 22  Purchaser have agreed to amend the bond indenture to

 23  provide that after the Tax-Exempt Conversion Date, the

 24  Series 2021B Bonds will bear interest at rates equal to
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 01  a percentage of SOFR plus an applicable spread each to

 02  be determined upon the execution of certain related

 03  documents.  The proposed Authority resolution approved

 04  supplements to the bond indenture and the execution by

 05  the Authority of any additional documents necessary in

 06  order to implement the amendment and to evidence the

 07  approval of the amendments.  The supplement to the bond

 08  indenture is authorized by the existing terms of the

 09  bond indenture.  The Purchaser will approve the

 10  amendments by executing the amendment instruments.

 11  Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected to provide an

 12  opinion that the amendments will not adversely affect

 13  the validity of the Series 2021B Bonds.  The

 14  Authority's estimated fee and the borrower's financials

 15  are also included.

 16                  Does any Member have any comments or

 17  questions?

 18                  (No verbal response.)

 19        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 20  Thank you, everyone.

 21        MS. PERUGINI:  Oh.  Excuse me Committee Chair

 22  Wright.

 23                  Two things, one, it looks like Member

 24  Juracek just joined the meeting.  So welcome, Member
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 01  Juracek.

 02                  And now I will continue with Item

 03  Number 6 in your packet, which starts on page 40 of the

 04  PDF, which is a memo and resolution for Rehabilitation

 05  Institute of Chicago d/b/a Shirley Ryan AbilityLab, the

 06  Borrower, which details amendments it would like to

 07  make with respect to its Series 2016C and Series 2016D

 08  Bonds and accompanying document.

 09                  All the Series 2016 Bonds currently

 10  bear interest at an index floating rate based on LIBOR.

 11  PNC Bank, National Association purchased and agreed to

 12  hold the Series 2016C Bonds until the end of the

 13  current index floating rate period for the Series 2016C

 14  Bonds, which is May 2, 2024.  Banc of America, Public

 15  Capital Corp. (hereinafter, the "Purchaser") purchased

 16  and agreed to hold the Series 2016D Bonds until the end

 17  of the current index floating rate period for the

 18  Series 2016D Bonds, which is November 30, 2026.

 19                  In order to take advantage of current

 20  market conditions, the Borrower and the Purchaser have

 21  agreed to convert the interest rate on the Series 2016

 22  C and D Bonds to an index floating rate based on BSBY

 23  for the new index floating rate period.  The Borrower

 24  expects that (1) the Purchaser will purchase and hold
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 01  the Series 2016C Bonds for the new index floating rate

 02  period, and (2) the Purchaser will continue to hold the

 03  Series 2016D Bonds for the new index rate floating

 04  period.  In connection with the conversion, the

 05  Borrower and Purchaser wish to amend and add certain

 06  definitions in the bond indentures to, among other

 07  things, provide for BSBY and make other amendments

 08  necessary to reflect the new index floating rate

 09  period.

 10                  The proposed Authority resolution

 11  approves supplements to the bond indentures and

 12  execution by the Authority of any additional documents

 13  necessary in order to implement the amendments and to

 14  evidence the approval of the amendments.

 15                  The supplements to the bond indentures

 16  are authorized by the existing terms of the bond

 17  indentures.  The Purchaser and the Borrower will

 18  approve the amendments by executing the amendment

 19  instrument.  As a result of the amendment, one or more

 20  series of the Series 2016 Bonds may be deemed reissued

 21  for tax purposes.  Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected

 22  to provide an opinion that the amendments will not

 23  adversely affect the tax exempt status of any of the

 24  Series 2016 Bonds.
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 01                  The Authority's estimated fee and the

 02  Borrower's financials are also included.

 03                  At this time, I'll take any comments or

 04  questions the Members may have.

 05        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is the Assistant

 06  Secretary, Mark Meyer, as Sara indicated earlier,

 07  Member Juracek joined at 8:57 and will be added to the

 08  initial quorum roll call.  And we now have a quorum.

 09        MS. PERUGINI:  Thank you, Mark.  Committee Chair

 10  Wright, I've concluded my presentation.

 11        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Thank you, Sara.  This

 12  is Jeffrey Wright.  Thank you, everyone.  I would like

 13  to request a motion to recommend for approval the

 14  following New Business Items:  Items 1, 2, 3, 4A, 4B, 5

 15  and 6.  Is there such a motion?

 16        MEMBER TOBON:  This is Eduardo Tobon.  So moved.

 17        MEMBER JURACEK:  And this is Arlene Juracek.

 18  Second.

 19        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Will the Assistant

 20  Secretary please call the roll?

 21        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer.

 22  On the motion by Member Tobon and second by Member

 23  Juracek, I will call the roll.

 24                  Member Juracek.
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 01        MEMBER JURACEK:  Aye.

 02        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Tobon.

 03        MEMBER TOBON:  Yes.

 04        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  And Committee Chair

 05  Wright.

 06        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Yes.

 07        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Again, this is Mark

 08  Meyer, Committee Chair Wright.  The ayes have it.  And

 09  the motion carries.

 10        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Committee Chair

 11  Wright.  Thank you, Mark.  Does anyone wish to make any

 12  additions, edits, or corrections of minutes from

 13  February 8, 2022?

 14                  (No verbal response.)

 15        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Hearing none, I would

 16  like to request a motion to approve the minutes.  Is

 17  there such a motion?

 18        MEMBER JURACEK:  This is Arlene Juracek.  So

 19  moved.

 20        MEMBER TOBON:  This is Eduardo Tobon.  Second.

 21        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 22  Will the Assistant Secretary please call the roll?

 23        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer.

 24  On the motion by Member Juracek and second by Member

�0027

 01  Tobon, I will call the roll.

 02                  Member Juracek.

 03        MEMBER JURACEK:  Aye.

 04        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Tobon.

 05        MEMBER TOBON:  Yes.

 06        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  And Committee Chair

 07  Wright?

 08        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Yes.

 09        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Again, this is Mark

 10  Meyer.  Committee Chair Wright, The ayes have it and

 11  the motion carries.

 12        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 13  Thank you, Mark.  Is there any other business to come

 14  before the committee?

 15                  (No verbal response.)

 16        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Hearing none, I would

 17  like to request a motion to adjourn.  Additionally,

 18  when responding to the roll call for this motion, I

 19  would ask each Member to confirm that they were able to

 20  hear the participants, discussion, and testimony of

 21  this proceeding.  Is there's such a motion?

 22        MEMBER TOBON:  This is Eduardo Tobon.  So moved.

 23        MEMBER JURACEK:  This is Arlene Juracek.  Second.

 24        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.
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 01  Will the Assistant Secretary please call the roll?

 02        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer.

 03  On the motion by Member Tobon and second by Member

 04  Juracek, I will call the roll.

 05                  Member Juracek.

 06        MEMBER JURACEK:  Aye, and I confirm that since

 07  joining, I could hear all participants, discussions,

 08  and testimony.  I apologize for my lateness, but we

 09  can't clone another grandma, so I had grandchildren

 10  duties this morning.

 11        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Tobon.

 12        MEMBER TOBON:  Aye, and I confirm that I could

 13  hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.

 14        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Committee Chair

 15  Wright.

 16        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Aye, and I confirm that

 17  I could hear all participants, discussion, and

 18  testimony.

 19        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  And Committee -- or

 20  Chair Hobert, ex officio, non voting.

 21        CHAIR HOBERT:  I confirm that I could hear all

 22  participants, discussion, and testimony.

 23        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Again this is Mark

 24  Meyer.  Committee Chair Wright, the ayes have it.  The
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 01  motion carries.  The time is 9:04 a.m., and the

 02  committee meeting is adjourned.

 03  

 04  

 05  

 06  

 07  

 08  

 09  

 10  

 11  

 12  

 13  

 14  

 15  

 16  

 17  

 18  

 19  

 20  

 21  

 22  

 23  

 24  
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 01  STATE OF ILLINOIS )

                       ) SS.

 02  COUNTY OF DUPAGE  )

 03  

 04        Michael Duffy, being first duly sworn, on oath

 05  says that he is a Certified Electronic Reporter doing

 06  business in the City of Wheaton, County of DuPage and

 07  State of Illinois.

 08        That he reported the proceedings had at the

 09  foregoing Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Financing

 10  Committee meeting.

 11        And that the foregoing is a true and correct

 12  transcript of the reported proceedings so taken

 13  aforesaid and contains all the proceedings had at said

 14  meeting.

 15  

 16  

 17                  Michael J. Duffy

 18                  Certified Electronic Reporter

 19                  Notary Public

 20  

 21  

 22  

 23  

 24  
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1 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Okay. Good morning. 1 MEMBER TOBON: Here.
2| Thisis Jeffrey Wright, chair of the Illinois Finance 2 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Zeller.
3| Authority Conduit Financing Committee. | would like to 3 (No verbal response.)
4| call the meeting to order. 4 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Committee Chair -- or
5 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Good morning. This | 3|I'm sorry. Yeah, Committee Chair Wright.
6|isMark Meyer, Assistant Secretary of the Authority. 6 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Here.
7| Today's date is Tuesday, March 8, 2022, and this 7 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: And Chair Hobert,
8 | specia meeting of the Authority's Conduit Financing 8 |ex-officio, nonvoting.
9 | Committee has been called to order by Committee Chair 9 CHAIR HOBERT: Here.
10| Wright at the time of 8:32 am. 10 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Again, thisis Mark
11 The Governor of the State of Illinois 11| Meyer. Committee Chair Wright, in accordance with
12| issued Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamations on February 12| Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Open Meetings Act as
1314, 2022, and March 4, 2022, finding that pursuant to 13| amended, a quorum of the Authority's Conduit Financing
14|the provisions of the Illinois Emergency Management 141 Committee has not been constituted, but we may continue
15| Agency Act, a disaster exists within the State of 15 at thistime.
16| llinois related to public health concerns caused by 16 Before we begin making our way through
17|COVID-19 declaring al countiesin the State of 17| today's agenda, | would like to request that each
18|[llinois as a disaster area, each of which remainsin 18| Member mute their audio when possible to eliminate any
19| effect for 30 days from its issuance date. 19 background noise unless you are making or seconding a
20 In accordance with the provisions of 20 | motion, voting, or otherwise providing any comments for
21| Subsection (€) of Section 7 of the Open Mesetings Act, 21|therecord. If you are participating via video, please
22| as amended, the Chair of the Authority, Will Hobert has 22| use your mute button found on your task bar on the
23| determined that an in-person meeting of the Authority 23| bottom of your screen. You will be able to see the
24| and al of its committees today, March 8, 2022, is not 24| control bar by moving your mouse or touching the screen
Page 3 Page 5
1| practical nor prudent because of the disaster declared. 1\ of your tablet.
2| Therefore, this meeting is being conducted via video 2 For any Member or anyone from the
3| and audio conference without the physical presence of a 3| public participating via phone, to mute and unmute your
4| quorum of the Members. Executive Director Chris 4|line, you may press star six on your keypad if you do
5|Meister is currently in the Authority's Chicago office 5| not have that feature on your phone.
6 | at the location of the meeting and also participating 6 Asareminder, we're being recorded and
7 |viavideo and audio conference; all Members will attend 7|acourt reporter is transcribing today's proceedings.
8| this meeting via video or audio conference. 8| For the consideration of the court reporter, | would
9 Aswetaketheroll cals, the 9|also like to ask that each member state their name
10 | responses of the Members will be taken as an indication 10 before making or seconding a motion or otherwise
11 | that they can hear all other Members, discussion, and 11| providing any comments for the record.
12 | testimony. 12 Finally, I would like to confirm that
13 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright. 13 |al members of the public attending in person or via
14| Thank you, Mark. Will the Assistant Secretary please 14 |video or audio conference can hear this meeting
15 |call theroll. 15|clearly. Chris, can you confirm that the video and
16 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Certainly. Thisis 16 |audio conferenceis clearly heard at the physical
17 |Mark Meyer. With all Members attending via video or 17]location of this meeting?
18 | audio conference, | will call theroll: Member 18 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MEISTER: Yes. Thank you,
19 | Fuentes. 19|Mark. Thisis Executive Director Chris Meister. | am
20 (No verbal response.) 20| physically present in the conference room on the 10th
21 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Hearing none. Member |21 |f|loor, 160 North LaSalle Street in Chicago. | can
22| Juracek. 22| confirm that | can hear al discussions, presentations
23 (No verbal response.) 23| and votes at this morning's meeting location. I've
24 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Tobon. 24| advised the security guards on the first floor that we
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Page 6
have two meetings today, of which thisisone. The

agendas for both meetings have been posted both on this
floor and as well as on thefirst floor of this

building as well as on the Authority's website as of

last Thursday, March 3, 2022. Building security has
been advised that any members of the public who choose
to do so and who choose to comply with the building's
public health and safety requirements may come to this
room and listen to this morning's proceedings. At the
moment, there are no members of the public who are
physically present with me. Thank you. Back to you.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: ThisisMark Meyer.
Thank you, Chris. If any Member of the public
participating via video or audio conference find that
they cannot hear these proceedings clearly, please call
(312) 651-1300, or write info@il-fa.com immediately to
let us know and we will endeavor to solve the audio
issue. Chair Wright, back to you.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.
Thank you, Mark. If anyone from the public
participating via video wishes to make a comment,
please indicate your desire to do so by using the
"Raise Hand" function. Click on the "Raise Hand"
option located at the center of your control bar at the

Page 8
in your packet, which starts on page 4 of the Conduit

PDF, isafina resolution for a not-to-exceed amount
of $1.1 billion for NorthShore University HealthSystem,
who isthe Borrower. The proceeds of the bonds will be
issued in one or more fixed and/or variable rate
tax-exempt and/or taxable series to be used, together
with certain other moneysto (1) finance, refinance or
reimburse the Borrower or the Users listed in the
report for the cost of acquiring, constructing,
renovating, remodeling, expanding, rehabilitating and
equipping certain health facilities owned by the
Borrower or any User.

Specificaly, it is contemplated that
bond proceeds will be used for (1) an expansion of the
number of surgical operating rooms and recovery room at
Skokie Hospital with an estimated completion date in
2022, and (2) expansion of the cardiovascular surgical
space at Glenbrook Hospital with an estimated
completion date of December 2024.

Bond proceeds will also be used to (2)
refund, refinance, or defease al or a portion of one
or more series of outstanding Authority Bonds listed in
the report (collectively, the "Prior Bonds");

(3) fund one or more debt service
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bottom of the screen. You will be able to see the task

bar by moving your mouse or touching the screen of your
tablet.

If anyone from the public participating
via phone wishes to make a comment, please indicate
your desire to do so by using the "Raise Hand" function
by pressing star nine.

Is there any public comment for the
committee?

(No verbal response.)

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Hearing none, | would
like to ask for the general consent of the Membersto
consider New BusinessItems 1, 2, 3, 4A, 4B, 5and 6
collectively and to have the subsequent recorded vote
applied to each respective, individual New Business
Item, unless there are any specific New Business Items
that a Member would like to consider separately.

(No verbal response.)

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Hearing no need of a
recusal. | would like to consider New Business Items
1, 2,3, 4A, 4B, 5 and 6 under the consent agenda and
takearoll call vote.

MS. PERUGINI: Thank you, Committee Chair Wright.
Good morning. Thisis Sara Perugini, and Item Number 1

Page 9
reserve funds, fund working capital and/or fund

interest if deemed necessary or desirable by the
Borrower or the Authority;

(4) pay certain payments owed by the
Borrower in connection with the termination of certain
interest rate swap agreements related to the Prior
Bonds;

and (5) pay certain expensesincurred
in connection with the issuance of the bonds and
refunding of the Prior Bonds, including the cost of any
credit or liquidity enhancement.

Thisisthe first time this has been
presented to the Members, and it's a one-time final
resolution. Under "job data" you will see the
information about the full-time employees as well as
project-related construction and permanent jobs.

Under "borrower description” you will
see that as aresult of amerger between the Borrower
and Edward-Elmhurst Healthcare, effective January 1,
2022, NS-EE Holdings became the sole member of the
Borrower and Edward-Elmhurst Healthcare to create a
health care delivery system, hereinafter referred to as
the System, providing afull range of health care
services with nine hospitals and more than 300
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outpatient facilities serving patient popul ations

within the City of Chicago and throughout the northern,
southwestern and western suburbs of the metropolitan
Chicago area. The System collectively operates nine
acute care hospitals, including an acute care
psychiatric hospital with an aggregate amount of
approximately 2300 licensed beds. The System is
organized into two regions, the north and south region,
and the report contains the specifics about the
hospitalsin each region.

The Borrower currently is the obligated
group agent and the sole obligated group member under a
master trust indenture between the Borrower and the
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, NA as master
trustee. Here and after the NorthShore Master
Indenture. Concurrently with the issuance of the bonds
NS-EE Holdings and Edward-Elmhurst Healthcare will
become obligated group members under the NorthShore
Master Indenture. The current master trust indenture
relating to the Edward-Elmhurst Healthcare obligated
group will be terminated and any obligations thereunder
securing outstanding bonds or interest rate swap
agreements will be canceled. Payments under the loan
agreements will be secured by obligations issued under
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. . . Page 12
long-term underlying credit ratings for the Borrower

are'Aa3' with a stable outlook by Moody's as of
February 15, 2022, and 'AA-' stable outlook by S& P
Global Ratings as of February 15, 2022. The publicly
offered bonds are al so expected to be rated by Moody's
and S&P. The directly purchased bonds will not be rated
and will be sold in minimum denominations of 100,000.

Related to credit enhancement. As
previously mentioned, one or more series of the
publicly offered variable-rate bonds will be backed by
a standby bond purchase agreement provided by JP Morgan
Chase Bank, carrying a long-term rating of '‘AA-' or
better. The bonds will mature no later than 35 years
after the date of issuance.

Turning to the top of page 6 of the
PDF, you will see the estimated sources and uses
breakdown. Skipping to page 8 of the PDF, you will see
interest rate information, the final bond resolution
established interest rate parameters of not-to-exceed
(2) 7 percent on the fixed-rate bonds and (2) 4 percent
asaninitia rate for the variable-rate bonds. This
transaction is estimated to closein April 2022.

On pages 10 through 11 of the PDF, you
will find the Board Members and professiona and
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the NorthShore Master Indenture.

Under "Structure/Credit Indicators' on
page 5 of the PDF, the plan of finance currently
contemplates the issuance of bonds in one or more fixed
rate and/or variable rate tax-exempt series that will
(2) be sold in a public offering underwritten by
Goldman Sachs and Co. and/or JP Morgan Securities, LLC,
or an affiliate thereof and/or (2) directly purchased
by TD Bank and/or PNC Bank or another bank chosen by
the Borrower.

Now as of today, the more detailed plan
of finance looks as follows. Approximately 450 million
fixed-rate bonds sold in a public offering underwritten
by Goldman Sachs and/or JP Morgan, approximately 230
million of variable-rate demand bonds sold in a public
offering underwritten by Goldman Sachs and/or JP
Morgan, with approximately 90 million of those backed
by a standby bond purchase agreement from JP Morgan
Chase Bank, approximately 160 million fixed-rate bonds
directly purchased by TD Bank, National Association or
other banks selected by the Borrower, and approximately
220 million variable-rate bonds directly purchased by
PNC Bank or other banks selected by the Borrower.

With respect to ratings, current

. . . Page 13
financial team, and on page 12 you will see a service

area map which details the north and south regions. On
the top of the page 13 of the PDF, you will find the
confidential information section starting with the
Authority's fee for this transaction. Followingisan
explanation of how the financials will be presented in
the offering documents, which are estimated to print in
mid-March. The Authority's signature on the bond
indentures will constitute receipt of the financial
information onceit is available.

The recent nature of the affiliation
and different fiscal year ends of the legacy NorthShore
System and legacy EE System makes the financial
presentation complicated and lengthy. The estimated
net present value savings from the potential refunding
of the Prior Bonds is approximately 7 million -- 70
million, excuse me.

At thistime, | will take any comments
or questions that any Member may have.

(No verbal response.)

MS. PERUGINI: Hearing none. Moving on to Item
Number 2 in your packet, which starts on page 14 of the
Conduit PDF, isafinal resolution for not-to-exceed
amount of 65 million, for Washington and Jane Smith
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Community, Orland Park, d/b/a Smith Crossing, who is

the Borrower. The proceeds of the bonds will be used
to (1) refund all or a portion of one or more series of
outstanding Authority bond listed in the report
(collectively, the "Prior Bonds"); (2) terminate three
existing swaps held with two banks on the prior bond;
(3) establish adebt service reserve fund, if deemed
necessary or desirable by the Authority and/or the
Borrower; and (4) pay certain fees and expenses
incurred in connection with the refunding of the Prior
Bonds and the issuance of the bond. Thisisthefirst
time this transaction has been presented to the
Members, and it's a one-time final resolution.

Under "job data' you will see
information about the full-time employees of the
Borrower.

Under "borrower description” the
Borrower operates Smith Crossing, a continuing care
retirement community located in Orland Park, a suburb
approximately 15 miles southwest of Chicago. Smith
Crossing consists of 173 independent living units, 46
traditional assisted living units, 16 memory care units
and 92 skilled nursing beds.

Under " Structure/Credit Indicators’ on
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page 19, you will find the service areamap. And on

the top of page 20 of the PDF, you will find the
confidential information section starting with the
Authority'sfee. Following are the audited financial
statements for the Borrower for fiscal years ended June
30, 2019, 2020, and 2021 prepared by
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, and unaudited financial
statements for the Borrower for the six months ended
December 31, 2020, and 2021. The Borrower is strong
financially, and the expansion to Smith Crossing, which
was financed with prior Authority bonds, is helping to
bolster the borrower's financial position.

The Borrower has a debt service
coverage above three times and over 400 days cash on
hand. The refunding of the Prior Bondsis not for
savings. The purpose of the refunding isto eliminate
the interest rate risk and bank renewal risk associated
with the current bank debt. And it will lock in
relatively low interest -- long-term fixed interest
rates with a public bond offering, which will help
improve the financial viability of the Borrower.

Does any Member have any comments or
guestions?

(No verbal response.)
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page 14 of the PDF, the plan of finance contemplates

the issuance of bonds in one or more fixed-rate
tax-exempt series that will be sold in a public
offering underwritten by Ziegler Investment Bank and
sold in minimum denominations of 5000. The bonds have
been assigned arating of 'BBB-', Stable Outlook, by
Fitch Ratings as of February 23, 2022. With respect to
security, the bonds are expected to be secured by an
obligation of the Borrower issued under the master
trust indenture. Such obligation will include a gross
revenue pledge and a mortgage on Smith Crossing. The
bonds will mature no later than October 15, 2045.

And at the bottom of the page you'll
see the estimated sources and uses. If you skip to
page 17 of the PDF, you will see interest rate
information. The final bond resolution establishes an
interest rate of not-to-exceed 5.25 percent on the
bond. However, as of February 2022, the bonds will be
issued as fixed-rate bonds at an estimated coupon rate
of 4 percent and a current estimated average yield to
call of 3.33 percent. Thistransaction is estimated to
close May -- March 24, 2022.

On page 18 of the PDF, you will seethe
Board Members and professional and financial team. On

Page 17
MS. PERUGINI: Thank you. Rich.

MR. FRAMPTON: Thisis Rich Frampton. Thank you,

Sara. The next project is Item 3 for Erikson
Institute, which begins on PDF page 23 of the Conduit
Financing Packet. Item 3isa501(c)(3) revenue bond
request. Staff requests approval of a one-time fina
bond resolution for The Erikson Institute, (hereinafter
"Erikson" or the "Corporation™) in an amount
not-to-exceed $25,700,000.

Bond proceeds will be used by Erikson
Institute to prospectively (1) refund and redeem all or
aportion of the outstanding Illinois Finance Authority
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A and Series 2017B,
(hereinafter referred to collectively as the " Series
2017 Bonds"), (2) pay aportion of the interest on the
Series 2022 Refunding Bond, if deemed necessary or
advisable by the Corporation, (3) fund a debt service
reserve fund, if deemed necessary or desirable by the
Corporation, and (4) pay certain costs relating to the
issuance of the Series 2022 Refunding Bonds, if deemed
necessary or desirable by the Corporation.

Erikson was founded in 1966 to provide
graduate and continuing professional education
programming for early childhood education and child
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Page 18
care professionals. All this began with inception of

the Head Start Program in the mid-sixties.

The original project to be refunded
with a Series 2022 Refunding Bonds was financed with 35
million of IFA Series 2007 bonds, which provided for
the construction, build-out and equipping of four
floors space a 541 North LaSalle Street in Chicago.

That facility continues as the home of Erikson's
classroom space and their administrative offices.

The Series 2022 Refunding Bonds will be
purchased directly by Northern Trust in a private
placement that will maintain the existing November 1,
2042, final maturity date featured on the Series 2017
Bonds. The proposed Series 2022 Refunding Bond issue
is being undertaken to one, generate annual debt
service savings, while two, enabling conversion of the
bank's underlying interest rate to a SOFR based index
from aLIBOR based index rate.

Erikson is not arated entity under the
bank direct purchase structure. No bond rating will be
necessary or required by the Northern Trust.

Key information in the report is
presented on PDF page 23, which reports the sources and
uses of fundstable. PDF page 26, reports Erikson's
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Page 20
Karcher presenting Agenda Item 4A, a Beginning Farmer

Bond request. Staff requests approval for aone-time
bond resolution for Austin Timmermannin a
not-to-exceed amount of 558,000. Mr. Timmermann is
purchasing approximately 117 acres of farmland located
in Clinton County. Germantown Trust & Savings Bank is
the purchasing bank for this conduit transaction.

Agenda Item 4B, continuing, isalso a
Beginning Farmer Bond request. Staff requests approval
for aone-time Final Bond Resolution for Tyger
Clodfelter in a not-to-exceed amount of 100,000.
Mr. Clodfelter is purchasing approximately 38 acres of
farmland in Wabash County. Citizens National Bank of
Albion is the purchasing bank for the conduit
transaction.

Does anyone have any questions or
comments from the Members?

(No verbal response)

MS. KARCHER: Thank you. Sara
MS. PERUGINI: Thanks, Lorrie. Thisis Sara

Perugini again. And Item Number 5 in your packet,
which starts on page 34 of the PDF, is amemo and
resolution for Plymouth Place, Inc., the Borrower,
which details amendments it would like to make with
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28-member governing board as well astheir life

trustees. While page 27 of the report features
Erikson's professional and financial team.

Moving on to the financials, which
begin on PDF page 28. Savings generated by the
proposed refunding will improve debt service coverage
from approximately 1.8 timesin 2021 to over 1.9 times
following closing of thisrefunding issue. Again, this
impact is directly attributable to the anticipated
savings from the issuance of the Series 2022 Refunding
Bonds. The expected annual savings are identified at
the top of PDF page 29.

Most importantly, astrue with al IFA
direct purchase bond issues, the Northern Trust as the
lender and bond purchaser for the Series 2022 Bond will
be assuming 100 percent of the default risk as the bond
purchaser and holder.

Does any Member have any questions or
comments?

(No verbal response.)

MR. FRAMPTON: Hearing none, next | will turn
things over to Lorrie Karcher, who will be presenting
two Beginning Farmer Bond financings.

MS. KARCHER: Thank you, Rich. ThisisLorrie

Page 21
respect to its Series 2021B Bonds, and accompanying

document. Hercules Capital Inc. (hereinafter, the
"Purchaser"} purchased and currently holds all of the
Series 2021B Bonds.

The Series 2021B Bonds currently bear
interest at taxable rates because the underlying series
2015 bonds they refunded are not callable until May 15,
2025, and therefore the underlying bonds were not
eigible for tax-exempt refunding when the Series 2021B
Bonds were issued in July 2021. The Series 2021B Bonds
are convertible to tax exempt interest rates on or
after February 15, 2025, (hereinafter, referred to as
the "Tax-Exempt Conversion Date"). The Series 2021B
Bonds currently bear interest at taxable interest rate
based on SOFR, published by The Federal Reserve Bank.
The terms of the bond indenture currently provide that
after the Tax-Exempt Conversion Date, upon satisfaction
of certain conditions, the Series 2021B Bonds will bear
interest at rates based on the SIFMA Index plus an
applicable spread. 1n order to take advantage of
current market conditions, the Borrower and the
Purchaser have agreed to amend the bond indenture to
provide that after the Tax-Exempt Conversion Date, the
Series 2021B Bonds will bear interest at rates equal to
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a percentage of SOFR plus an applicable spread each to

be determined upon the execution of certain related
documents. The proposed Authority resolution approved
supplements to the bond indenture and the execution by
the Authority of any additional documents necessary in
order to implement the amendment and to evidence the
approval of the amendments. The supplement to the bond
indenture is authorized by the existing terms of the
bond indenture. The Purchaser will approve the
amendments by executing the amendment instruments.
Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected to provide an
opinion that the amendments will not adversely affect
the validity of the Series 2021B Bonds. The
Authority's estimated fee and the borrower's financials
are also included.

Does any Member have any comments or
questions?

(No verbal response.)

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.
Thank you, everyone.
MS. PERUGINI: Oh. Excuse me Committee Chair

Wright.

Two things, one, it looks like Member
Juracek just joined the meeting. So welcome, Member

Page 24
the Series 2016C Bonds for the new index floating rate

period, and (2) the Purchaser will continue to hold the
Series 2016D Bonds for the new index rate floating
period. In connection with the conversion, the
Borrower and Purchaser wish to amend and add certain
definitions in the bond indentures to, among other
things, provide for BSBY and make other amendments
necessary to reflect the new index floating rate
period.

The proposed Authority resolution
approves supplements to the bond indentures and
execution by the Authority of any additional documents
necessary in order to implement the amendments and to
evidence the approval of the amendments.

The supplements to the bond indentures
are authorized by the existing terms of the bond
indentures. The Purchaser and the Borrower will
approve the amendments by executing the amendment
instrument. Asaresult of the amendment, one or more
series of the Series 2016 Bonds may be deemed reissued
for tax purposes. Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected
to provide an opinion that the amendments will not
adversely affect the tax exempt status of any of the
Series 2016 Bonds.
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Page 23
Juracek.

And now | will continue with Item
Number 6 in your packet, which starts on page 40 of the
PDF, which is amemo and resolution for Rehabilitation
Institute of Chicago d/b/a Shirley Ryan AbilityLab, the
Borrower, which details amendments it would like to
make with respect to its Series 2016C and Series 2016D
Bonds and accompanying document.

All the Series 2016 Bonds currently
bear interest at an index floating rate based on LIBOR.
PNC Bank, National Association purchased and agreed to
hold the Series 2016C Bonds until the end of the
current index floating rate period for the Series 2016C
Bonds, whichis May 2, 2024. Banc of America, Public
Capital Corp. (hereinafter, the "Purchaser") purchased
and agreed to hold the Series 2016D Bonds until the end
of the current index floating rate period for the
Series 2016D Bonds, which is November 30, 2026.

In order to take advantage of current
market conditions, the Borrower and the Purchaser have
agreed to convert the interest rate on the Series 2016
C and D Bonds to an index floating rate based on BSBY
for the new index floating rate period. The Borrower
expects that (1) the Purchaser will purchase and hold

Page 25
The Authority's estimated fee and the

Borrower's financials are also included.
At thistime, I'll take any comments or

guestions the Members may have.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Thisisthe Assistant
Secretary, Mark Meyer, as Saraindicated earlier,
Member Juracek joined at 8:57 and will be added to the
initial quorumroll call. And we now have a quorum.

MS. PERUGINI: Thank you, Mark. Committee Chair
Wright, I've concluded my presentation.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thank you, Sara. This
is Jeffrey Wright. Thank you, everyone. | would like
to request amotion to recommend for approval the
following New Business Items: Items1, 2, 3, 4A, 4B, 5
and 6. Isthere such amotion?

MEMBER TOBON: ThisisEduardo Tobon. So moved.

MEMBER JURACEK: And thisis Arlene Juracek.
Second.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Will the Assistant
Secretary please call theroll?

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: ThisisMark Meyer.
On the motion by Member Tobon and second by Member
Juracek, | will call theroll.

Member Juracek.
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1 MEMBER JURACEK: Aye. 1|Will the Assistant Secretary please call theroll?
2 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Tobon. 2 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: ThisisMark Meyer.
3 MEMBER TOBON: Yes. 3| On the motion by Member Tobon and second by Member
4 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: And Committee Chair | 4|Juracek, | will call theroll.
5 |Wright. 5 Member Juracek.
6 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Yes. 6 MEMBER JURACEK: Aye, and | confirm that since
7 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Again, thisis Mark 7|joining, | could hear all participants, discussions,
8|Meyer, Committee Chair Wright. The ayes haveit. And 8 |and testimony. | apologize for my lateness, but we
9 |the motion carries. 9|can't clone another grandma, so | had grandchildren
10 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Committee Chair |10 |duties this morning.
11)Wright. Thank you, Mark. Does anyone wish to make any 11 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Tobon.
12| additions, edits, or corrections of minutes from 12 MEMBER TOBON: Aye, and | confirm that | could
13| February 8, 20227 13| hear al participants, discussion, and testimony.
14 (No verbal response.) 14 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Committee Chair
15 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Hearing none, | would 15\ Wright.
16 | like to request a motion to approve the minutes. |Is 16 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Aye, and | confirm that
17| there such amotion? 1711 could hear al participants, discussion, and
18 MEMBER JURACEK: ThisisArlene Juracek. So 18 | testimony.
19 moved. 19 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: And Committee -- or
20 MEMBER TOBON: Thisis Eduardo Tobon. Second. 20| Chair Hobert, ex officio, non voting.
21 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright. 21 CHAIR HOBERT: | confirm that | could hear al
22| Will the Assistant Secretary please call the roll? 22| participants, discussion, and testimony.
23 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: ThisisMark Meyer. |23 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Againthisis Mark
241 0n the motion by Member Juracek and second by Member 24| Meyer. Committee Chair Wright, the ayes haveit. The
Page 27 Page 29
1| Tobon, | will call the roll. tImotion carries. Thetimeis9:04 am., and the
2 Member Juracek. ?|committee meeting is adjourned.
3 MEMBER JURACEK: Aye. 3
4 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Tobon. 4
5 MEMBER TOBON: Yes. 5
6 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: And Committee Chair | 6
7|Wright? 7
8 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Yes. 8
9 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Again, thisisMark 9
10| Meyer. Committee Chair Wright, The ayes haveit and 10
11| the motion carries. 1
12 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright. 12
13| Thank you, Mark. Isthere any other business to come 13
141 before the committee? 14
15 (No verbal response.) 15
16 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Hearing none, | would 16
17|like to request amotion to adjourn. Additionaly, 17
18 |when responding to theroll call for this motion, | 18
19| would ask each Member to confirm that they were able to 19
20 | hear the participants, discussion, and testimony of 20
21|this proceeding. |sthere's such amotion? 21
22 MEMBER TOBON: Thisis Eduardo Tobon. So moved. 22
23 MEMBER JURACEK: ThisisArlene Juracek. Second. 23
24 24

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.
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STATE OF ILLINO S )
) SS.
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

M chael Duffy, being first duly sworn, on oath
says that he is a Certified Electronic Reporter doing
business in the Cty of Weaton, County of DuPage and
State of Illinois.

That he reported the proceedi ngs had at the
foregoing Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Fi nancing
1 Committee neeti ng.

1 And that the foregoing is a true and correct
1 transcript of the reported proceedi ngs so taken
1 af oresaid and contains all the proceedings had at said

1 meet i ng.

1 M chael J. Duffy
1 Certified Electronic Reporter

1 Notary Public
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